# BYLAWS OF PEACEWIND CONDOMINIUM COTTAGES ASSOCIATION, INC. (A Corporation Not-for-Profit)

## ARTICLE I - GENERAL

Section 1 - Name and Address. The name, address and term of existence of the Association shall be set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

<u>Section 2 - Powers.</u> The Association shall have the rights, powers, duties and functions as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation. The Association shall be managed and operated by the Board of Directors.

<u>Section 3 - Members.</u> The members of the Association, their qualifications and voting rights and the manner of transferring membership shall be as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

#### ARTICLE II - MEETINGS

Section 1 - Meetings. All annual and special meetings of the Association shall be held at such place as may be permitted by law and from time to time fixed by the Board of Directors and designated in the notices of meeting.

Section 2 - Annual Meetings. Annual meetings of the members of the Association shall be held on the first Saturday in November of each year at a time and place fixed by the Board of Directors. Notice of the meeting, which shall include an agenda, shall be mailed to each member not less than fourteen (14) days prior thereto, pursuant to the requirements of the Condominium Act, as amended. In addition to such written notice, the Secretary shall conspicuously post notice of the annual meeting on the condominium property for fourteen (14) continuous days preceding the meeting, as required by the Condominium Act, as amended.

Section 3 - Social Meetings. Special meetings of the members, for any purpose or purposes, whether or not specifically required by these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration of Condominium naming this Association as the association thereunder, may be called by the President, Secretary, or a majority of the Board of Directors, or as otherwise provided in the Condominium Act, as amended.



Section 4 - Special Meeting Business. No business shall be transacted at any special meeting except as stated in the notice thereof. Notice shall be given and posted by the Secretary of all special meetings, or if the Secretary shall fail to do so, by the President or the Board of Directors, not less than fourteen (14) days before the date thereof, stating the date, time and place of the meeting and the purpose or purposes thereof. Notice shall be given as provided in the Condominium Act, as amended.

Section 5 - Quorum. Except as otherwise provided in the Condominium Act, persons present in person or by proxy entitled to cast at least fifty percent (50%) of the voting interests of the Association shall constitute a quorum.

Section 6 - Majority Vote. When a quorum is present at any meeting, the holders of a majority of the voting interests present in person or represented by written proxy shall decide any question brought before the meeting, unless the question is one upon which by express provision of the Condominium Act, the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws, a different minimum vote for approval is required, in which case the express provision shall govern and control.

Section 7 - Proxies. Unit owners may vote in person or by proxy. Any proxy given shall be effective only for the specific meeting for which originally given and any lawfully adjourned meetings thereof. In no event shall any proxy be valid for a period longer than ninety (90) days after the date of the first meeting for which it was given. Every proxy is revocable at any time at the pleasure of the unit owner executing it.

Section 8 - Voting Certificates. When a unit has more than one owner or is owned by a corporation, partnership or other artificial entity, the record owners of the unit shall designate in writing one owner, or in the case of a corporation or other entity an officer or representative of the owner, who shall be authorized to vote and represent the unit. Any record owner of a unit shall be eligible to serve as an officer or director of the Association whether designated as the unit representative on the voting certificate or not.

Section 9 - Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings shall be as set forth in the agenda prepared by the Board of Directors and submitted to the members with the notice of each meeting.

### ARTICLE III - BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 - Number and Term. The number, terms of office, and provisions regarding removal and filling of vacancies of the Board of Directors shall be as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2 - Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of the Board shall be held immediately following the annual meeting of the members.

Section 3 - Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and place permitted by law and from time to time as may be determined by the Directors, and special meetings may be called as provided in the Articles of Incorporation. Notice of regular and special meetings of the Board shall be given to each Director in the manner provided under the Condominium Act, as amended. The Board may, by resolution duly adopted, establish regular monthly, quarterly, or semiannual meetings. All meetings of the Board shall be open to the members of the Association, except as otherwise provided by law.

Section 4 - Quorum. At all meetings of the Board, a majority shall be necessary and sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a majority present at any meeting shall be the act of the Board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute or by the Declaration or Articles of Incorporation.

Section 5 - Order of Business. The order of business of all meetings of the Board shall be as prescribed in an agenda furnished each member of the Board by the President, Secretary or other officer.

Section 6 - Powers and Duties. The Board shall have and exercise all lawful powers and duties necessary for the proper conduct and administration of the affairs of the Association and for the exercise of its rights, powers, duties and functions.

Section 7 - Power to Convey Common Elements. The Board of Directors, on behalf of the Association, shall have the power to convey a portion or portions of the common elements to a condemning authority for purposes of providing utility easements, right-of-way expansion, or other public purposes, whether negotiated or as a result of eminent domain proceedings.

Section 8 - Bonding. All persons who control or disburse funds of the Association shall be bonded pursuant to the provisions of the Condominium Act.

Section 9 - Recall. A member of the Board (other than Developer designee) may be recalled at any time, with or without cause, by the members of the Association in the manner provided by the Condominium Act.

#### ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS

Section 1 - Officers. The officers of the Association, their terms of office, the manner of election, and the method of removal and filling vacancies shall be as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.

Section 2 - President. The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Association and shall preside at all meetings of the members and the Board of Directors. The President shall have the general powers and duties usually vested in the office of President, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the members or Directors from time to time as deemed appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association, and to reconstitute and disband same. The President shall execute such deeds, contracts, and other instruments, in the name and on behalf of the Association and under its corporate seal, when a seal is required, except when such documents are required or permitted by law to be otherwise executed and except when the signing and execution thereof shall be delegated by the Board of Directors to another officer or agent of the Association.

Section 3 - Vice-President. The Vice-President or Vice Presidents shall be vested with all of the powers required to perform all the duties of the President in the President's absence, and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors. In the event there is more than one

Vice-President, the Board of Directors may prescribe the order in which the Vice-Presidents shall assume control in the absence of the President.

Section 4 - Secretary. The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, the minutes of all proceedings of the Directors and the members. The Secretary shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and Directors and other notices required by law. The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, the records of the Association, except those of the Treasurer, and shall perform all of the duties incident to the office of Secretary of an Association and as may be required by the Directors or the President. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties of the Secretary when the Secretary is absent.

<u>Section 5 - Treasurer.</u> The Treasurer shall have responsibility for all fimds of the Association. The Treasurer shall keep, or cause to be kept, the books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices; and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Treasurer.

Section 6 - Other Officers. The Board of Directors may create and appoint such other and additional officers as they shall, from time to time, deem necessary and appropriate to assist with the affairs of the Association.

Section 7 - Removal of Officers. Any officer may be removed at any time, with or without cause, upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the full Board of Directors.

# ARTICLE V - MANNER OF COLLECTING FROM THE UNIT OWNERS THEIR SHARES OF THE COMMON EXPENSES

The Association shall collect from the unit owners their respective shares of the common expense in accordance with procedure prescribed in the Declaration of Condominium and the applicable provisions of Chapter 718, Florida Statutes.

# ARTICLE VI - AUTHORITY OF DIRECTORS

Section 1 - Rules and Regulations. The Board of Directors is authorized to adopt or to amend rules and regulations and statements of policy, not inconsistent with the Declaration of Condominium and the Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, governing the manner of use of

the units and appurtenances, the common elements, and all the facilities owned or controlled by the Association.

Section 2 - Inspection of Records. The Association shall maintain accounting records, current copies of the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, rules and regulations, and other documents, books, records and financial information for the condominium. All accounting records shall be maintained in accordance with good accounting practices. Official records shall be open to inspection by unit owners or their authorized representatives as provided by law.

Section 3 - Financial Statements. Financial reporting shall satisfy the minimum requirements of the Condominium Act as amended.

## **ARTICLE VII - ARBITRATION**

In the event of any "dispute" as defined in the Condominium Act, as amended, the parties to such dispute shall submit said dispute to mandatory non-binding arbitration in accordance with the procedures established by the Division of Florida Condominiums, Time Shares and Mobile Homes of the Department of Business and Professional Regulation.

### ARTICLE VIII - AMENDMENT

Amendments to the Bylaws shall be proposed to the membership of the Association in writing. An affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the entire voting interests shall be necessary to amend the Bylaws. No amendment affecting the right or interest of the Developer shall be effective without the written consent of the Developer.

# ARTICLE IX - ANNUAL BUDGET

Section 1 - Annual Budget. The annual budget shall be adopted annually by the Board of Directors at a meeting of the Board of Directors. By resolution adopted by not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the members of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may change the fiscal year for the Association and may change the date of the meeting at which the Board of Directors shall adopt the budget.

Section 2 - Reserves. In addition to actual operating expenses, the budget shall include reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance as required by the Condominium Act, as amended.

# ARTICLE X - SEVERABILITY

If any paragraph, sentence, clause or portion thereof or any provision of these Bylaws shall be held invalid, it shall not affect the validity of the remaining parts thereof. In the event of any conflict herein with a provision of the Declaration or the Condominium Act, as amended from time to time, the Declaration or Condominium Act shall prevail.

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of PEACEWIND CONDOMINIUM COTTAGES ASSOCIATION, INC., a corporation not-for-profit under the laws of the State of Florida, at the first meeting of the Board of Directors.

Beltera Down

CFN 2021101603, OR BK 9094 Page 1363, Recorded 04/21/2021 at 12:08 PM Rachel M. Sadoff, Clerk of Courts, Brevard County

Prepared by: John L. Soileau, Esq. 3490 North U.S. Highway 1 Cocoa, FL 32926

# JOINDER IN AND CONSENT BY MORTGAGEE TO DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM

The undersigned, FLORIDA COMMUNITY LOAN FUND, INC. ("Mortgagee"), as the owner and holder of a mortgage ("Mortgage") executed by BRAVEHEART PROPERTIES OF BREVARD, INC., a Florida corporation, dated 2/19/21, 2020, and recorded in Official Records Book 9023, Page 421, Public Records of Brevard County, Florida, which Mortgage encumbers the lands described therein, hereby consents to and joins in the Declaration of Condominium of Peacewind Condominium Cottages, which Declaration is recorded in Official Records Book 9093, Page 989, Public Records of Brevard County, Florida.							
Witness the Mortgagee's hand and seal on the date set forth below.							
WITNESSES:	FLORIDA COMMUNITY LOAN FUND, INC.						
Print Name: The Guehany	Print Name: 16 Acto ESTERAU As its: Ceo						
Print Name Pelly Baldwin	Address:						
STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF Orange							
physical presence oronline notarization, personally appeared / GMA/O ESTERANasof FLORIDA COMMUNITY LOAN FUND, INC. on behalf thereof, who is personally known by me, or who producedN/A as identification, and who acknowledged the foregoing instrument and who did not take an oath.							
	Notary Public - State of Florida My Commission Expires: 8/11/2022						
	JANET H DE GUEHERY						

Commission # GG 207428 Expires August 11, 2022 Fonded Thru Budget Motory Services